
Region Four RURAL TASK FORCE 
 

Meeting Agenda 
Thursday May 27, 2021 1:30 PM 

Virtual Meeting- Via Zoom 
 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Changes or Additions to the Agenda 

3. Approval of Minutes of the December 8, 2020  Meeting – enclosed Action Item 

4. Fiscal Year 2021 Project Updates  – enclosed 

5. Highway Infrastructure Program (HIP) Projects  – Enclosed Action Item 

6. Region 4 RTF Bylaws Update – enclosed Action Item 

7. 2023-2026 Call for RTF Projects Timeline 

8. Public Comment or Privilege of the Floor 

9. Adjournment 

 

Voting Members of the Region Four County Rural Task Force: 

BERRIEN COUNTY 
Kevin Stack – Berrien County Road Commission 
Evan Smith – Berrien Bus 
Bob Getz – Village of Baroda 
 
CASS COUNTY 
Joe Bellina – Cass County Road Commission 
Dennis Schuh – Cass County Public Transit  
Ben Anderson – Village of Cassopolis 
 
VAN BUREN COUNTY 
Barry Anttila – Van Buren County Road Commission  
Tony Dacoba – Van Buren County Public Transit 
Mathew Newton – Village of Decatur 
 
Staff 
Brandon Kovnat, Southwest Michigan Planning Commission 
Kim Gallagher, Southwest Michigan Planning Commission  



 

 

Region Four RURAL TASK FORCE 
 

Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday December 8, 2020 1:30 PM 

Virtual Meeting- Via Zoom 
 

Attendance Name Representing 

Voting Members Kevin Stack Berrien County Road Department  
Bob Getz Village of Baroda  
Joe Bellina Cass County Road Commission  
Dennis Schuh Cass County Public Transit  
Ben Anderson Village of Cassopolis  
Barry Anttila Van Buren County Road Commission  
Lauri Schlipp Van Buren Public Transit, Alternate  
Matt Newton Village of Decatur, Alternate 

Staff Brandon Kovnat SWMPC  
Kim Gallagher SWMPC 

MDOT Josh Grab MDOT, RTF Program Manager  
Don Mayle MDOT  
Jim Sturdevant MDOT 

Attendance Jaqueline Terrill Village of Marcellus 
 Tommy Simpson City of Bangor  

Aaron Netting Wightman & Associates  
Steve Rogusta Village of Breedsville  
Dan Faulkner Village of Three Oaks  
Micky Bittner Wightman & Associates  
Frank Renaldi Wightman & Associates  
Brian Johnson Village of Lawrence 

 Theresa Stroud Village of Lawrence  
Tom Barczak Village of Bloomingdale  
Tony McGhee Abonmarche  
Dan Bishop Van Buren County Road Commission  
Steve Carslile Wightman & Associates 

 
  



 

 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
Meeting was called to order at 1:30 PM by RTF Region 4 Chair, Joe Bellina. 
 

2. Changes or Additions to the Agenda 
None 
 

3. Approval of Minutes of the January 22, 2020 Meeting 
Motion to approve the minutes from the January 22, 2020 Region 4 RTF meeting was made 
by Matt Newton, Van Buren RTF Village/City Rep and seconded by Bob Getz Berrien RTF 
Village/City Rep. Motion approved. 

 
4. Fiscal Year 2021 Project Updates  

Berrien County: Kevin Stack said that the Berrien county Road Department was doubling 
the length of the Red Arrow Highway project. The changes also includes constructing a non-
motorized path along the entire length of the project. The project does not include any 
streetscaping elements. The current work on Red Arrow at Union Pier, funded by 2020 RTF 
funds, has a streetscaping component that is funded solely by the Townships which includes 
decorative benches, landscaping and lighting.  
 
Cass County: Joe Bellina said that the Marcellus Highway project was in design. He added 
that he would present the updates for the Decatur project along with project amendments 
later in the meeting. 
 
Van Buren County:  Aaron Netting said that the E. Arlington Street project in Bangor was 
obligated with an expected letting in February. 
 
Barry Anttila said that there was a delay on the CR 388 project due to concerns about 
wetlands, but he did not think this would hold up the project. He added that he was waiting 
for the Village of Bloomingdale to respond so he could coordinate the construction timeline 
of the county project with a project on the same road (called Kalamazoo Street in 
Bloomingdale) within the village limits.  
 
Tom Barzack gave an update on the Village of Bloomingdale’s E. Kalamazoo Street project. 
The Village will connect the project to the county’s portion with spring construction 
expected. Originally, the Village had not applied to construct the entire length of E. 
Kalamazoo but based on a discussion at the previous RTF meeting Bloomingdale agreed to 
find funding to ensure the Kalamazoo Street project extended to the village limits.  
 
 

5. FY 2021 Budget Shortfall Discussion 
 
a) Capping Costs at a Percentage of the Overage  

MDOT allows unspent funding from previous years (carryover) to be used for project 
cost increases at the time of obligation and afterwards, if projects are uncapped (also 



 

 

known as ‘pro rata’). If projects are capped the amount of federal funding never exceeds 
the amount programed. Because federal funds are allocated to the entire region, and 
not just by county, the region 4 RTF has to vote to be uncapped. If Carryover were 
completely expended and projects are uncapped the additional cost will come from the 
current year’s funds and could result in the Region RTF not having funding available for 
all of the programed projects. Region 4 RTF currently has $885,000 in carryover funds. 
Staff suggested adopting a cap of 10% above programed costs as a compromise 
between using the carryover funds while not running out of funding before all projects 
are obligated.  
 
Motion to cap all RTF Region 4 projects at the programed costs plus 10%. Made by Matt 
Newton and seconded by Kevin Stack. Motion approved. 
 

b) Project Amendments 
See meeting packet for amendment details 
Kevin Stack presented the cost increases for the Red Arrow project; he added that any 
streetscaping was not included in the cost and would be the responsibility of Chikaming 
Township. 
 
Joe Bellina proposed to cancel the Cass county Road Commission’s project on Decatur 
Road and to add a project on Mason Street. Based on the latest condition of the roads, 
Mason Street is a higher priority foe repair than Decatur Road. He said that he had been 
planning to repair Mason Street in 2022 using local funds only. The current proposal is 
to repair Mason in 2021 using federal funding and repair Decatur in 2022 with local 
funds.  To balance Cass County’s RTF budget Bellina also presented a cost change for the 
Marcellus Highway project. 
 
A cost change was proposed for Van Buren County’s CR 388 project in order to balance 
Van Buren RTF’s budget. It was noted that because the City of Bangor’s project on E. 
Arlington was already obligated, the programed cost for that project could no longer be 
changed.  
 
Motion to approve all project changes as presented. made by Kevin Stack and seconded 
by Matt Newton. Motion approved. 

 
6. FY 2022 and FY 2023 Potential Budget Shortfall Discussion 

Two scenarios were discussed showing how a lack of funding increases in 2022 & 2023 
could translate into specific cuts to projects.  
 

7. Proposed Changes to the All Season Road Network  
None. 

 
8. Region 4 RTF Bylaws Update  

Gallagher led a discussion about proposed changes to the Region 4 RTF bylaws.  



 

 

The main comments concerned the project selection methodology. The RTF members 
decided that they would like more time to review the bylaws before voting. SWMPC was 
instructed to send out a copy of the draft bylaws for comment to the RTF membership. 
 

9. 2023-2026 Call for RTF Projects Timeline 
The timeline for the 2020-2023 call for projects was presented. SWMPC staff committed to 
putting together draft project selection criteria for consideration and approval by the 
county subcommittees and the full RTF.   
 

10. Public Comment or Privilege of the Floor 
Josh Grab, MDOT RTF coordinator, gave an update on changes to the RTF program.  
  

11. Adjournment 
Meeting was adjourned at 3:08 pm. The next meeting will be scheduled for April or May. 
 
Minutes compiled by Brandon Kovnat, SWMPC Associate Planner 



Region 4 RTF FY 2021 Projects  
May 20, 2021 

 
JN County Project Programed   Obligation    

   Federal State D Local Total Federal State D Local Total 

206402 Berrien S Red Arrow Hwy $775,933 $99,377 $1,924,690 $2,800,000 $853,526 $99,277 $1,671,522 $2,624,325 

207172 Cass Marcellus Hwy $202,208 $50,553 $0 $252,761 $203,681 $50,920 $0 $254,601 

207346 Cass Pavement Markings $75,000 $0 $0 $75,000 $82,500 $0 $1558 $84,058 

211999 Cass Mason St $338,204 $0 $84,551 $422,755 $372,024 $0 $134,901 $506,925 

206739 Van Buren E Arlington St $129,000 $146,637 $74,363 $350,000 $129,000 $146,637 $96,630 $372,267 

206694 Van Buren County Road 388 $702,089 $0 $487,911 $1,190,000 $665,902 $0 $462,745 $1,128,647 

 
Federal cost is capped at 10% above the programed amount 



Michigan Department 
of Transportation 

1799 (10/20)
RURAL TASK FORCE DATA SHEET

ROAD JOB
(To be completed by each county or city for every job submitted to the Task Force)

ALL ITEMS MUST BE COMPLETED 
JOB REQUEST CHANGE TYPE

NEW JOB
MOVE TO ILLUSTRATIVE

JOB NUMBER      FY COST SCOPE 

 DELETE
FISCAL YEAR  COUNTY CITY / VILLAGE (If applicable)

ROAD JOB DESCRIPTION
ROAD NAME FROM NFC MAP (http://mcgi.state.mi.us/nfc) LENGTH (Miles)

FROM TO

ADDITIONAL JOB INFORMATION

ELEMENTS NEEDING COMMITTEE APPROVAL
   SIDEWALK     N/A 

ANTICIPATED LETTING DATE (Month/Year)

JOB BUDGET CONSTRUCTION PHASE ONLY: (Not to 
include ROW, feasibility studies, design, or testing.)

$

$

$

By checking this box, the person completing this form certifies that the job identified in this document is eligible to be funded with federal 
Surface Transportation Program (STP) or state Transportation Economic Development Fund Category D funds.

SUBMITTED BY (Please print) TITLE DATE

SIGNATURE PHONE NUMBER

MAJOR WORK TYPE:

PROPOSED 
ALL SEASON

ALL SEASON ROAD STATUS
https://mdot.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id= 

ac067829f74e49eba28b33605ccd87c0

CONTRACT PROCESS: CONTRACT TYPE:

OR       MAP ATTACHED: 

JOB CHANGE 

NFC FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION 

PHYSICAL REFERENCE (PR) NUMBER: BEGINNING MILE: ENDING MILE:    

ALL SEASON
NETWORK

N/A (NO STATE "D" 
        FUNDING ON JOB)

$

$

$

$

OR

GRAVEL ROAD

$

a) CE
b) PE
c) Other

$
$

NON-LAP PARTICIPATING

$

STP

STP CE (RTF 1 ONLY)

LOCAL MATCH

ACC FY

TOTAL PARTICIPATING 
STP BUDGET (Line 1-4)

TEDF "D" AMOUNT:

OTHER PARTICIPATING 
AMOUNT: (CMAQ, BRIDGE, 
EARMARKS)

NON-PARTICIPATING 
AMOUNT: GRANTS, LOCAL 
UTILITIES, ETC.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

  TOTAL JOB COST: $

JOB COST INCLUDING NON-LAP: $

http://www.mcgi.state.mi.us/nfc/
https://mdot.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ac067829f74e49eba28b33605ccd87c0


Michigan Department 
of Transportation 

1799 (10/20)
RURAL TASK FORCE DATA SHEET

ROAD JOB
(To be completed by each county or city for every job submitted to the Task Force)

ALL ITEMS MUST BE COMPLETED 
JOB REQUEST CHANGE TYPE

NEW JOB
MOVE TO ILLUSTRATIVE

JOB NUMBER      FY COST SCOPE 

 DELETE
FISCAL YEAR  COUNTY CITY / VILLAGE (If applicable)

ROAD JOB DESCRIPTION
ROAD NAME FROM NFC MAP (http://mcgi.state.mi.us/nfc) LENGTH (Miles)

FROM TO

ADDITIONAL JOB INFORMATION

ELEMENTS NEEDING COMMITTEE APPROVAL
   SIDEWALK     N/A 

ANTICIPATED LETTING DATE (Month/Year)

JOB BUDGET CONSTRUCTION PHASE ONLY: (Not to 
include ROW, feasibility studies, design, or testing.)

$

$

$

By checking this box, the person completing this form certifies that the job identified in this document is eligible to be funded with federal 
Surface Transportation Program (STP) or state Transportation Economic Development Fund Category D funds.

SUBMITTED BY (Please print) TITLE DATE

SIGNATURE PHONE NUMBER

MAJOR WORK TYPE:

PROPOSED 
ALL SEASON

ALL SEASON ROAD STATUS
https://mdot.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id= 

ac067829f74e49eba28b33605ccd87c0

CONTRACT PROCESS: CONTRACT TYPE:

OR       MAP ATTACHED: 

JOB CHANGE 

NFC FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION 

PHYSICAL REFERENCE (PR) NUMBER: BEGINNING MILE: ENDING MILE:    

ALL SEASON
NETWORK

N/A (NO STATE "D" 
        FUNDING ON JOB)

$

$

$

$

OR

GRAVEL ROAD

$

a) CE
b) PE
c) Other

$
$

NON-LAP PARTICIPATING

$

STP

STP CE (RTF 1 ONLY)

LOCAL MATCH

ACC FY

TOTAL PARTICIPATING 
STP BUDGET (Line 1-4)

TEDF "D" AMOUNT:

OTHER PARTICIPATING 
AMOUNT: (CMAQ, BRIDGE, 
EARMARKS)

NON-PARTICIPATING 
AMOUNT: GRANTS, LOCAL 
UTILITIES, ETC.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

  TOTAL JOB COST: $

JOB COST INCLUDING NON-LAP: $

http://www.mcgi.state.mi.us/nfc/
https://mdot.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ac067829f74e49eba28b33605ccd87c0


Michigan Department 
of Transportation 

1799 (10/20)
RURAL TASK FORCE DATA SHEET

ROAD JOB
(To be completed by each county or city for every job submitted to the Task Force)

ALL ITEMS MUST BE COMPLETED 
JOB REQUEST CHANGE TYPE

NEW JOB
MOVE TO ILLUSTRATIVE

JOB NUMBER      FY COST SCOPE 

 DELETE
FISCAL YEAR  COUNTY CITY / VILLAGE (If applicable)

ROAD JOB DESCRIPTION
ROAD NAME FROM NFC MAP (http://mcgi.state.mi.us/nfc) LENGTH (Miles)

FROM TO

ADDITIONAL JOB INFORMATION

ELEMENTS NEEDING COMMITTEE APPROVAL
   SIDEWALK     N/A 

ANTICIPATED LETTING DATE (Month/Year)

JOB BUDGET CONSTRUCTION PHASE ONLY: (Not to 
include ROW, feasibility studies, design, or testing.)

$

$

$

By checking this box, the person completing this form certifies that the job identified in this document is eligible to be funded with federal 
Surface Transportation Program (STP) or state Transportation Economic Development Fund Category D funds.

SUBMITTED BY (Please print) TITLE DATE

SIGNATURE PHONE NUMBER

MAJOR WORK TYPE:

PROPOSED 
ALL SEASON

ALL SEASON ROAD STATUS
https://mdot.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id= 

ac067829f74e49eba28b33605ccd87c0

CONTRACT PROCESS: CONTRACT TYPE:

OR       MAP ATTACHED: 

JOB CHANGE 

NFC FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION 

PHYSICAL REFERENCE (PR) NUMBER: BEGINNING MILE: ENDING MILE:    

ALL SEASON
NETWORK

N/A (NO STATE "D" 
        FUNDING ON JOB)

$

$

$

$

OR

GRAVEL ROAD

$

a) CE
b) PE
c) Other

$
$

NON-LAP PARTICIPATING

$

STP

STP CE (RTF 1 ONLY)

LOCAL MATCH

ACC FY

TOTAL PARTICIPATING 
STP BUDGET (Line 1-4)

TEDF "D" AMOUNT:

OTHER PARTICIPATING 
AMOUNT: (CMAQ, BRIDGE, 
EARMARKS)

NON-PARTICIPATING 
AMOUNT: GRANTS, LOCAL 
UTILITIES, ETC.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

  TOTAL JOB COST: $

JOB COST INCLUDING NON-LAP: $

http://www.mcgi.state.mi.us/nfc/
https://mdot.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ac067829f74e49eba28b33605ccd87c0


Michigan Department 
of Transportation 

1799 (10/20)
RURAL TASK FORCE DATA SHEET

ROAD JOB
(To be completed by each county or city for every job submitted to the Task Force)

ALL ITEMS MUST BE COMPLETED 
JOB REQUEST CHANGE TYPE

NEW JOB
MOVE TO ILLUSTRATIVE

JOB NUMBER      FY COST SCOPE 

 DELETE
FISCAL YEAR  COUNTY CITY / VILLAGE (If applicable)

ROAD JOB DESCRIPTION
ROAD NAME FROM NFC MAP (http://mcgi.state.mi.us/nfc) LENGTH (Miles)

FROM TO

ADDITIONAL JOB INFORMATION

ELEMENTS NEEDING COMMITTEE APPROVAL
   SIDEWALK     N/A 

ANTICIPATED LETTING DATE (Month/Year)

JOB BUDGET CONSTRUCTION PHASE ONLY: (Not to 
include ROW, feasibility studies, design, or testing.)

$

$

$

By checking this box, the person completing this form certifies that the job identified in this document is eligible to be funded with federal 
Surface Transportation Program (STP) or state Transportation Economic Development Fund Category D funds.

SUBMITTED BY (Please print) TITLE DATE

SIGNATURE PHONE NUMBER

MAJOR WORK TYPE:

PROPOSED 
ALL SEASON

ALL SEASON ROAD STATUS
https://mdot.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id= 

ac067829f74e49eba28b33605ccd87c0

CONTRACT PROCESS: CONTRACT TYPE:

OR       MAP ATTACHED: 

JOB CHANGE 

NFC FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION 

PHYSICAL REFERENCE (PR) NUMBER: BEGINNING MILE: ENDING MILE:    

ALL SEASON
NETWORK

N/A (NO STATE "D" 
        FUNDING ON JOB)

$

$

$

$

OR

GRAVEL ROAD

$

a) CE
b) PE
c) Other

$
$

NON-LAP PARTICIPATING

$

STP

STP CE (RTF 1 ONLY)

LOCAL MATCH

ACC FY

TOTAL PARTICIPATING 
STP BUDGET (Line 1-4)

TEDF "D" AMOUNT:

OTHER PARTICIPATING 
AMOUNT: (CMAQ, BRIDGE, 
EARMARKS)

NON-PARTICIPATING 
AMOUNT: GRANTS, LOCAL 
UTILITIES, ETC.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

  TOTAL JOB COST: $

JOB COST INCLUDING NON-LAP: $

http://www.mcgi.state.mi.us/nfc/
https://mdot.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ac067829f74e49eba28b33605ccd87c0


 
 

 1 
Region 4 Rural Task Force Bylaws 

January 2015 
- December 2020 Revisions Draft 

 

 

Region 4 Rural Task Force 
(Berrien, Cass, and Van Buren Counties) 

 
ARTICLE I-NAME 

The name of this Task Force shall be the “Region 4 Task Force.”  
The name of this regional transportation coordinating body shall be the Region Four Rural Task Force, 
hereinafter referred to as Region 4 RTF. The Region 4 RTF includes Berrien County, Cass County, and Van Buren 
Counties.  
 

ARTICLE II-PURPOSE 
The Rural Task Force Program provides federal dollars to rural counties with a population under 400,000.  These 
dollars must be spent in their geographic areas and both road and transit capital projects are eligible.  
  
The money is provided within two funding sources:  

1. Surface Transportation Program (STP) Rural for improving the federal aid system and for transit capital 
projects; and  

2. State Category D for building and maintaining all-season road network, which supplements the state 
highway system. 

 
Section 1 General Purpose 
A. The purpose of the Region 4 RTF committee shall be to establish priorities and select projects for the 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) within the designated rural areas of Berrien, Cass, and Van 
Buren Counties (A rural area is defined as any area that is not included in a developed area with a 
population of 5,000 or more). The TIP will be submitted to the State Transportation Commission for funding 
under the Fixing American’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act and be incorporated into the State 
Transportation Improvement Program (STIP).  
 

B. This committee shall also be the task force to select all season routes and select projects on those routes 
within Berrien, Cass, and Van Buren County for submission to the State Transportation Commission for 
funding under subsection 2 of Act No. 233, Public Acts of 1987, commonly known as Transportation 
Economic Development Fund Category D (“State D”).  

 
Section 2 Project Selection 
A. Every three years the Region 4 RTF shall select a four-year list of projects, which will be referred to as the 

RTF Transportation Improvement program (TIP).  Projects selected for the RTF TIP shall be evaluated and 
selected based one more the following: methods; established project selection criteria approved by the RTF 
members or on the greatest needs of the region as determined through a consensus decision-making 
process.  

B. Any eligible project that was submitted, evaluated and not selected for the TIP, shall be added to an 
illustrative list for consideration if funding becomes available.  

 
C. At least one priority route shall be selected by each county, and:  

1. Priority routes shall be approved by the Task Force.  
2. All work on an approved priority route will be to all season standards regardless of funding.  
3. Priority routes shall begin and end at existing all season roads or loading origin. 



 
 

 2 
Region 4 Rural Task Force Bylaws 

January 2015 
- December 2020 Revisions Draft 

 

 
D. In the event, that additional funding or a programed project is canceled the Region 4 RTF shall do one of the 

following: 

 Move a project from a future year in the RTF TIP forward 

 Add a project from the approved illustrative list  

 If no future year project or illustrative project is selected a call for projects will be issued.  
 
Section 2. Project Requirements 
All Projects must meet the following requirements: 

 Projects shall be in accordance with the FAST Act.  

 Projects shall be selected in conformance to the current Michigan Transportation Plan (MTPP) FAST Act 
Program Principles.  

 Projects must include non-federal matching funds of at least 18.15% of the total eligible costs of a 
project  

 Road construction projects using federal funds must be on a federal aid eligible road 

 Projects using State D funds must be on a road accepted into the all season road system and 
construction shall be to all season standards 

 Funding shall only be used for physical road construction or transit capital purchases. 

 Funding shall not be used for design and construction engineering or right-of-way acquisition.  

 Projects must have an complete biddable package submitted to MDOT by August 1st of the year the 
project is programed for. 

 

ARTICLE III-MEMBERSHIP 
 
 
A. Sub-task Force Committee (county level) consists of three (3) members:  

a. One representative from the County Road Commission/Department 
b. One representative from the County’s rural transit system  
c. One representative from the incorporated cities or villages within the rural portion of the county. 

 
B. Region 4 RTF membership is comprised of the County Sub-task level task force members. The voting members 
of the committee shall be as follows with each member agency having one vote: 

 Berrien County Road Department 

 Cass County Road Commission 

 Van Buren Road Commission 

 A designated representative from the incorporated villages or cities in Berrien County 

 A designated representative from the incorporated villages or cities in Cass County 

 A designated representative from the incorporated villages or cities in Van Buren County 

 Berrien Bus of Berrien County 

 Cass County Public Transit of Cass County 

 Van Buren Public Transit of Van Buren County  

 Michigan Department of Transportation (For State D funds only) 
 
C.  Federal guidelines requires that a voting member must be elected or employed by the eligible voting entity in 
order to cast a vote unless a written resolution is passed through the entities elected board specifically naming 
another person to represent said entity. 



 
 

 3 
Region 4 Rural Task Force Bylaws 

January 2015 
- December 2020 Revisions Draft 

 

 
D.  An alternative representative may be appointed for the county road agency and the rural transit provider. 
The village/cites may elect a representative from a different city/village (within the county) to serve as their 
alternate. The alternate representatives shall have all the powers and privileges of the primary voting 
representative in the absence of that representative.   
 
E. The Region 4 RTF shall elect a chair every three years. In the event that the chair is absent, a temporary chair  
shall be selected to chair the meeting.  
 
F. The Region 4 RTF  Chair and Staff are authorized to make adjustments to a project cost for a project that has 

been selected and established as a priority by the committee and has been included on the State TIP and 
programmed with MDOT. This adjustment may be made when requested by a voting member from the 
county of the project and when the county has adequate fund balances to cover a cost increase. The 
accounting changes and fund balance updates shall be made before the next committee meeting 

 
 

Article IV STAFF 
The regional planning agency for Berrien, Cass, and Van Buren Counties is the Southwest Michigan Planning 
Commission (SWMPC). Staff from SWMPC shall serve as staff to the Region 4 RTF. Staff responsibilities 
include (but are not limited to): 

 Working with the RTF chair to ensure a cooperative, coordinated, and comprehensive planning process 
is followed that is consistent with approved federal planning regulations 

 Ensuring that the concerns of local elected/appointed officials with responsibilities for transportation in 
rural areas are considered during the planning process.  

 Ensuring that the public involvement process is followed to allow sufficient notice and opportunity to 
comment on proposed transportation projects, plans and programs 

 Submitting documentation to MDOT to program or change projects. 

 Disseminating communication from MDOT about the RTF program to all RTF members 

 Coordinating the development of the TIP with RTF members 

 Ensuring fiscal constraint is met through by keeping a budget of the RTF that covers at least 4 years.  

 Facilitating agreements for borrowing/lending funds 
 

 
 

1.  Sub-Task Force 
The membership of the County Sub-Task Force shall consist of three (3) members.  The membership shall 
include a  

 1 representative of the county road commission;  

 1 representative of the county rural transit system; and  

 1 representative from the county’s incorporated cities and villages with a population of less than 5,000   
  

*It should be noted that the eligible cities and villages will be convened by representatives from the Southwest 
Michigan Planning Commission to facilitate this discussion and prioritization of projects.  The eligible cities and 
villages will meet prior to the sub-task force meetings to discuss projects that they would like voted upon at the 
Sub-task force level within each county. 
  



 
 

 4 
Region 4 Rural Task Force Bylaws 

January 2015 
- December 2020 Revisions Draft 

 

2.  Region  
All projects selected in each of the counties that make up Region 4 (Berrien, Cass, and Van Buren) will be 
done by the following members in each county: 

 1 representative from the county road commission,  

 1 representative from all the cities and villages with populations under 5,000 

 1 representative from the rural transit provider.  

 Michigan Department of Transportation representative will vote on State D funded projects at the 
 regional meeting. 

 
Each member of the Sub-Task Force and Region meeting may have an alternate designated by the organization 
which they represent, who shall have all the powers and privileges of the member in the absence of the 
member.  The alternate is welcome to attend all meetings and enter into the discussions, but has no vote except 
in the absence of the member.  To designate an alternate, a voting member should send that alternate’s name 
via email or regular mail to SWMPC staff. Proxy votes will not be allowed.  
 
ARTICLE IV – PROJECT INFORMATION 

1. Project Location 

 Projects shall be located on roads that are eligible under the current transportation bill.    

 Roadways within a Census defined urban area are not eligible for rural transportation funds. 

 Money can be spent on transit capital projects as identified at the RTF meeting. 
 

2. Project Compliance 

 Construction shall be in compliance with all Federal and/or State standards unless waived by the 
agency having authority to do so. 
 

3. Project Selection 
Projects brought to the Sub Task Force for consideration may be evaluated for selection by but not 
limited to the following criteria: 

 Projects will be evaluated on the following criteria: 
i. Pavement Surface Evaluation and Rating System 

ii. Average Daily Traffic Counts 
iii. All Season Connections within Region 4 
iv. Percentage of local match if over required 20% 
v. Alignment with current federal transportation legislation goals 

vi. Alignment of National Performance Measures 
vii. Alignment of State Performance Measures 

viii. Additional funding sources for the project beyond STP, State D, or local match 

 The Sub Task Force meetings can also decide if they want to spend rural money on non-
motorized facilities.  This will be done at each Sub Task Force level. 

 
4. Funding Sources/Matching/Requirements  

 STP-Rural money can only be spent on “construction costs” for roadway projects.  Right-of-way 
(ROW), construction engineering (CE), and preliminary engineering (PE) costs are a local 
responsibility.  Requires at least a 20% non-federal match.  This could be either state D or local 
match.  



 
 

 5 
Region 4 Rural Task Force Bylaws 

January 2015 
- December 2020 Revisions Draft 

 

 *Money may be spent on capital transit projects and these projects require at least a 20% non-
 federal match. 

 

 State TEDF Category D  
i. Money must be classified as rural primary, or city/village major roadways.  If a road is 

not, application must be made to Region IV Task Force and the classification changed 
before TEDF Category D money can be used to improve the road.   

ii. The road also must be designated as a “D” route by the Region 4 Task Force members.   
iii. TEDF-Category D projects must be funded with at least 20 percent of the cost coming 

from a non-TEDF source (i.e., STP-Rural, local, etc.)  This stipulation can be waived by 
the Office of Economic Development if the county or city can prove economic hardship.  



 
 

 6 
Region 4 Rural Task Force Bylaws 

January 2015 
- December 2020 Revisions Draft 

 

 

 Sub Allocation of Region 4 Funds 
i. Region 4 funds will be allocated to each of the counties in the Task Force using a 

formula calculated by taking into account the following factors: 
1. Rural Mileage as approved by MDOT 
2. Rural Population as defined by the U.S. Census Bureau 
3. Land Area in Square Miles 

The current allocation for each county shall always be found at 
http://www.swmpc.org/rtf.asp.  This allocation will change on an annual basis depending on 
changes to rural mileage.  

 
ARTICLE V-MEETINGS  
All meetings will adhere to the Michigan Open Meetings Act and adhere to MDOT’s Consultation Plan. 

I. Regular meetings 
a. An annual Region 4 meeting shall be held by the end of February of each year as agreed to by 

the Task Force.  The purpose of this meeting can be to, but is not limited to: 
1. Discuss prioritized projects 
2. Move projects 
3. Bring new projects to the Committee,  
4. Determine the fiscal year that projects should be completed. 

b. Regular meetings of the Sub-Task Force shall be held by the end of January of each year, at a 
time and place to be determined by the chairman of the Sub-Task Force.  The purpose of these 
meetings can be to, but is not limited to: 

1. Funding levels change,  
2. Additional money needs to be allocated,  
3. Projects have changed and thus money needs to be reprogrammed    

c. Ensure compliance with federal and state guidelines.  
d. Transportation needs of Indian Tribal Government having jurisdiction over lands within the 

boundaries of the Task Force are considered during the process.  
e. Include and encourage public involvement in the project selection process.  
f. Must keep copy of minutes of meeting showing members and other individuals present, 

projects selected, and consensus on decisions reached at the meeting.  
g. Must have proof of publication of meeting notice that solicits public participation.  
h. Voting Authority 

i. Voting authority shall reside in the representatives from the agencies listed in Article III 
members for both the region meeting and county meetings. 

1. Voting shall be done in person at the day of the meeting 
 
 

II. Special meetings 
a. Special meetings of the Sub-Task Force or Region shall be held at the call of the chairman or at a 

written request of a majority of the members of the Sub-Task Force or Region. Notification of 
the meeting to the members of the Sub-Task Force or Region will meet the standards of the 
Michigan Open Meeting Act. 

III. Notice of meetings 

http://www.swmpc.org/rtf.asp


 
 

 7 
Region 4 Rural Task Force Bylaws 

January 2015 
- December 2020 Revisions Draft 

 

a. Notice of all regular meetings shall be given to each member by e-mail (or mail if no email is 
available) ten (10) days prior to the meeting date.  Notice of special meetings may be given by 
telephone or by e-mail, which must state purpose of the meeting.  

IV. Quorum 
a. A simple majority of the members of the Task Force or Region shall constitute a quorum.  

Alternate members present in the absence of regular members shall be counted in determining 
a quorum. Members shall notify SWMPC of their designated alternate, chosen by the member.  

 

ARTICLE V MEETINGS   
 
Section 1. Meetings Requirements 

A. All meetings will adhere to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, MDOT’s Consultation Plan, and the 
SWMPC Public Participation Plan. 

B. The general public and other interested parties must be provided an opportunity to comment on 
proposed projects at Rural Task Force meetings.  

C. Rural task force members (in coordination with the Regional Planning Agency) must ensure that projects 
meet funding eligibility requirements and criteria; are constrained to funding allocation targets for each 
year of the rural portion of the STIP; and are approved by the task force.  

D. Meeting locations shall be rotated based on venue availability and suitability.  
E. Region 4 RTF shall be required to meet at a least once per year, but are encouraged per the statewide 

RTF guidelines to meet at least three times a year 
F. Meeting dates shall be determined by consensus between the RTF chair and staff. Recommended 

meeting months are: 
• November-February (annual meeting)  
• April/May 
• August   

G. The County RTF shall meet at a minimum of once every three years to program projects or when the 
County RTF decides there are significant project changes to warrant a meeting.  

H. Notice of meetings will be a minimum of five business days prior to the scheduled meeting  
 
Section 2. Quorum 
A simple majority of the voting members of the county sub-task force or Region 4 RTF shall constitute a quorum. 
Alternate voting members present in the absence of regular members shall be counted in determining a 
quorum. 

 
ARTICLE VI-OFFICERS 

The officers of the Sub Task Force and Region shall be a chairman and vice-chairman.  The officers shall serve 
two (2) year terms.  Elections are to be held during the annual meeting of even numbered years.  The chairman 
shall have the right to appoint committees.  
  

 
 
 

ARTICLE VI-AMEND ARTICLES 



 
 

 8 
Region 4 Rural Task Force Bylaws 

January 2015 
- December 2020 Revisions Draft 

 

The Sub Task Force and Region shall have power to make, alter, amend or repeal the Articles by a majority of the 
total membership voting in the affirmative at any regular or special meeting.  A written notice of intention to 
make changes, including proposed changes, shall be presented to the membership prior to the meeting.  

ARTICLE VI AMEND THE BYLAWS 
 
The Region 4 RTF shall have power to make, alter, amend, or repeal these articles by a majority of the total  
membership voting in the affirmative at any Region 4 RTF meeting. A notice of proposed changes shall be 
presented to the membership prior to the meeting and posted publically in accordance with the SWMPC Public 
Participation Plan.  
 
  
  
Revised this  2nd day of February, 2015 
  
  
Revisions approved by Region Four Rural Task Force this ___ day of December, 2020  
 
 
 
These bylaws conform to the STATEWIDE GUIDELINES AND OPERATING PROCEDURES FOR RURAL FUNDING AND PLANNING 
COORDINATION as updated on August 2020. Region 4 RTF shall utilize the state guidelines for any additional clarification on 
rules.  

 
 
 
  
 
 
 

 

https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mdot/RTF_Guidlines_updated_July_2019_672224_7.pdf
https://www.michigan.gov/documents/mdot/RTF_Guidlines_updated_July_2019_672224_7.pdf

	Baroda Lemon Creek Road 2022 Added 5.20.2021.pdf
	Blank Page

	Cassopolis_N.OKeefe_St_2022 UPDATED 5.20.2021.pdf
	Blank Page

	CCRC_BarronLakeRd_2022 UPDATED 5.20.2021.pdf
	Blank Page

	VBCRC CR 687 HIP funded 2022.pdf
	Blank Page


	Text10: 
	0: Cleveland 
	1: First

	Text25: 
	0: 
	1: 

	Check Box31bX: 
	1: Off

	Text49: 
	1: 

	Check Box8: no
	Text8: 
	0: Lemon Creek Road & Stevensville Baroda Road

	Text3: 
	0: 
	0: 

	1: 
	0: 2.992
	1: 
	0: 3.389
	1: 1360601



	Text6: 
	0: Berrien
	2: Lemon Creek Road - Cleveland Ave to First StreetStevensville/Baroda Road - Lemon Creek Road to north Village Limits The existing surface would be milled and resurfaced with 1.5" of HMApavement. Drainage structure covers would be replaced/adjusted ifcondition warrants and minimal curb and gutter would be replaced. ADAramps would be installed in accordance with federal regulations. HIP Funded

	Check Box7: Yes
	Text24: 
	0: 387426

	Clear Form button: 
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box4w: Off
	Check Box4q: Off
	Check Box4x: Off
	Check Box1z: Off
	Dropdown1: [2022]
	Text7: Baroda
	Button1www2: 
	Dropdown1AQ: [6 MINOR Collector]
	Text9: 
	Check Box1zA1: Off
	Dropdown3CC: [MDOT Let]
	Dropdown4DD: [Design-Bid-Build]
	Button5: 
	Text16: April 2022
	Cleanout Method: Off
	Cleanout Method2: Off
	Cleanout Method3: Pump
	Dropdown2: [Milling & One Course Asphalt Overlay (GPA)]
	PA1: 
	PA2: 
	PA3a: 
	PA3b: 105206
	PA4: 105206
	PA5: 
	PA6: 282220
	PA7: 58114
	PA8: 38743
	PA9: 
	PA10: 
	Text26: 
	NON-LAP: 484283
	Clear Form button40: 
	Check Box737: no
	Text3: 
	1: 
	1: 
	022: 5.12
	123: 594605
	173: 579309
	072: 0.938

	021: 2.64
	071: 0.5

	0: 
	020: 207175
	070: 


	Check Box40: Off
	Check Box4w11: 1
	Check Box4q12: Off
	Check Box4x13: Off
	Check Box1z18: Off
	Dropdown124: [2022]
	Text6: 
	028: Cass
	229: Mill and one course non-structural overlay of existing lane surface and shoulders, and pavement markings. Combination of HIP & STP funds
	078: Van Buren
	279: In Keeler Township. Trench and widen, crush and shape, and an HMA paving HIP funded

	Text71: 
	Button1www232: 
	Text8: 
	015: Barron Lake Road
	065: CR 687

	Dropdown1AQ25: [4 MINOR Arterial]
	Text92: 2.46
	Text10: 
	03: Cook Street
	14: Pokagon Highway
	053: CR 342
	154: 90th Avenue

	Check Box1zA119: Off
	Dropdown3CC16: [MDOT Let]
	Dropdown4DD17: [Design-Bid-Build]
	Check Box814: no
	Button531: 
	Text165: April 2022
	Cleanout Method39: Off
	Cleanout Method247: Off
	Cleanout Method346: Pump
	Dropdown238: [One Course Asphalt Overlay (GPA)]
	PA126: 185000
	PA227: 
	PA3a33: 82377
	PA3b34: 
	PA430: 267377
	PA535: 87000
	PA636: 115623
	PA741: 70500
	PA843: 47000
	PA944: 
	PA1045: 
	Check Box31bX: 
	19: 2
	159: 2

	Text25: 
	06: 
	17: 
	056: 
	157: 

	Text268: 
	Text49: 
	110: 
	160: 

	Text24: 
	048: 470000
	098: 519917

	NON-LAP49: 587500
	Clear Form button90: 
	Check Box787: Yes
	Check Box450: Off
	Check Box4w61: Off
	Check Box4q62: Off
	Check Box4x63: Off
	Check Box1z68: Off
	Dropdown174: [2022]
	Text751: 
	Button1www282: 
	Dropdown1AQ75: [5 MAJOR Collector]
	Text952: 0.438
	Check Box1zA169: Off
	Dropdown3CC66: [MDOT Let]
	Dropdown4DD67: [Design-Bid-Build]
	Check Box864: no
	Button581: 
	Text1655: March 2022
	Cleanout Method89: Off
	Cleanout Method297: Off
	Cleanout Method396: Pump
	Dropdown288: [Crush & Shape & Asphalt Resurfacing (GPA)]
	PA176: 314000
	PA277: 
	PA3a83: 205917
	PA3b84: 
	PA480: 519917
	PA585: 
	PA686: 
	PA791: 77988
	PA893: 51992
	PA994: 
	PA1095: 
	Text2658: 
	NON-LAP99: 649897


